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MASON-DIXON LINE: MILESTONE NO. 99(102) 1767 replacement (first set 1902)
Leitersburg, Maryland vicinity

Public/private

Milestone No. 99(102) marks (or approximately marks?) Mason and Dixon's 99th
horizontal mile west of the northeast corner of Maryland, the beginning of their
236.228—mile West Line, later known as the Mason-Dixon Line, famous for its
historical impact and innovative survey methods. It is an original milestone of
1767, quarried and carved in England, of oolitic limestone, was used as a replacement
for the milestone originally set at this site, and was first set in 1902 during

the 1900-03 Resurvey of the Maryland-Pennsylvania boundary. It is unaltered but
only in fairly good condition. If found to be at the site as redetermined in 1902,
it is at the site preliminarily surveyed in 1765. It now stands?&ﬁgag 1 foot

above ground level; measures close to 12 inches square;/fgdso weathered very little
of its distinguishing embellishments remain: only the Roman capital letters P on
the north side facing Pennsylvania and M on the south side facing Maryland, and
some fluting on the south side. The top is now flat (no longer pyramidal with
fluted planes) and mostly covered with cement, as though a repair of earlier damage;
all top corners are chipped, particularly the northwest and southwest, as are all
edges, and all margins are gone. On the national and state levels, No. 99(102)

is significant primarily as one of 135 original monuments in the thematic group
series of some 248 markers still defining the West Line. Locally, as one of 48
original monuments marking the present Washington/Franklin-Fulton county boundary
(10 crownstones; 38 milestones), it is also significant as one of a diminishing
number of objects and structures with a visually identifiable relationship to the

colonial and Civil War heritage of these counties.
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99th Mason-Dixon Line marker 1765
Leitersburg Vicinity

public

This 99th Mason-Dixon milestone is significant
as one of the remaining original boundary markers planted
by Charles Mason and Jeremiah Dixon who began work on
the division line between Maryland and Delaware and Pennsyl-
vania in 1764,
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X Goop —RUINS —ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESE!‘JT A.ND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
. (if in the redetermined site of 1902)
Milestone No. 99(102)/marks Mason and Dixon's 99th horizontal mile west

of the northeast corner of Maryland, the beginning of their 230.228-mile West

. . . mil
Line. It is an orlglnal/repigggﬁgnt of 1767, first set in 1902 at a redetermined
original site during the 1900-03 Resurvey of the Maryland-Pennsylvania boundary.

It i§ in fairly good condition, firmly set but leaning slightly to the northeast,
/%ﬁgl%gred.

The area here is rural, comparatively open farmland, scattered patches of
deciduous woodlands, sparsely settled. The site is within Election District 9

of Washington County, MD; Washington Township of Franklin County, PA; about 2¥

. about 0.9 mile north of !
miles northwest of the town of Leitersburg,/about g fgggogf? %ﬁgrggsgo:gée of

State Line Road/Leitersburg Road (T-359), in the level side yard of the Diller
farm (about 100 feet northwest of their old stone barn), between two wood posts
which serve to mark and protect it somewhat., It should be noted here that there
is a discrepancy in locations of this monument on several maps: the site on

the 1900-03 Resurvey engineer's EgﬁfagﬁTt%28&G§ri§§ﬁiﬁagﬁ%ﬁé ogaeounty map is

on the west side of the road; on the USGS Hagerstown quadrangle and MD-DOT map
on the east side. (This will be traced in the follow-up Phase II of the present

Mason-Dixon Line boundary marker project.)

According to the 1900-03 Resurvey (MGS Vol. 7, 1908, p. 89): "The monument
placed here by Mason and Dixon had disappeared, having apparently been broken
up, as small pieces of its peculiar material were found. The position was
redetermined and another monument supplied. It stands by the road from
Greencastle to Leitersburg.'" The replacement, as with all original Mason and
Dixon West Line monuments, was quarried and carved in England, of oolitic
limestone, and originally measured about 12 inches square by about Ly, feet long
with a low pyramidal top, cut to stand as a post about 3 feet above ground, with
the base left rough-cut for setting into the ground. The distinguishing
embellishments are the vertical fluting with horizontally-fluted margins on all
four sides, and the Roman capital letters P on the north side facing Pennsylvania
and M on the south side facing Maryland, each V-sunk in the center of a plain
shallow circle panel near the top. The replacement milestone still measures
close to 12" square; stands about 1 foot above ground; has a flat rather than
pyramidal top, most of which has been filled in with cement, as though to protect
and repair from some earlier damage; and all surfaces are very weatherworn.
The letters and most of the circle panels are fairly intact and clear; the top
corners and edges are chipped, the southwest and northwest particularly; and
no fluting or margins remain except on the south side (fluting only).

(see Thematic Group National Register nomination form for full descriptions o
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY the original Mason and Dixon

monuments and the 1900-03% Resurvey method of resetting them)
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) SIGNIFICANCE
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~~-PREHISTORIC  —ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC  __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __RELIGION
1400-1499 _ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION _LAW __SCIENCE
_.1500-1599 __AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
_.1600-1699 __ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILTARY __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
X_1700-1799 _ART __ENGINEERING __MusIC __THEATER
X 1800-1899 __COMMERCE X EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _ PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
X 1900- __COMMUNICATIONS __INDUSTRY X _POULITICS/GOVERNMENT X _OTHER (SPECIFY)

__INVENTION boundary surveying

SPECIFIC DATES 1167 first set 1902 BHOOOPRXXCHIXKX Charles Mason & Jeremiah Dixon
a SURVEYORS

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Milestone No. 99(102), a replacement milestone of 1767, is significant
on the national and state levels primarily as one of a series of 135 original
Mason and Dixon monuments in the thematic group series of some 248 markers
still defining their 230,228-mile West Line, the boundary later known as the
Mason-Dixon Line, famous for its historical impact and innovative survey
methods. The site was preliminarily surveyed in 1765, first milestone set
two years later, and the replacement first set at a redetermined original
site in 1902 during the 1900-03 Resurvey of the Maryland-Pennsylvania boundary.
Locally, as one of 48 original monuments marking the present Washington/
Franklin-Fulton county boundary (10 crownstones; 38 milestones), No. 99(102)
is also significant as one of a diminishing number of objects and structures
with a visually identifiable relationship to the colonial and Civil War

heritage of these countiese.

HISTORY AND SUPPORT (see Thematic Group National Register nomination form)

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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FIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

(see Thematic Group National Register nomination form)

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
EJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY __less than one acre

Quadrangle name: Hagerstown (Maryland-Pennsylvania), USGS 7.5 minute series
(topographic), scale 1:24000

UTM reference: zone 18, easting 27253, northing 439990

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION N/A

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE Maryland COUNTY Washington
STATE Pennsylvania COUNTY Franklin
81 FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE

Alice Martin (volunteer, Mason & Dixon's West Line boundary marker surveyor)
ORGANIZATION DATE

Maryland Historical Trust & Maryland Geological Survey 10/13/80 (site surveyed)
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE

14308 Mount Avenue 301/472-2128
CITY OR TOWN STATE

Phoenix Maryland 21131

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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Map 11

OMMON
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L -
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| Leitersburg Vicinity

STATE COUNTY:
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ACCESSIBLE
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[ District 7] Building Public Public Acquisition: [ Occupied Yes:
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Object [ Both [ Being Considered [ Preservation work O Unrestricted
in progress {1 Ne

PRESENT USE (Check One or More aa Appropriate)

[3 Transportation
Other (Specity)
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{0 Comments

[ Agricultural [ Government O Park

{J Commercial O Industrial [J Private Residence
(] Educational O Military [ Religious

{3 Entertainment 3 Museum T Scientific

WNER’S N AME:

State Of Maryland - Commonwealth Of Pennsylvania

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN:

STATE:

OUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC

STREET AND NUMBER:
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TITLE OF SURVEY:
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{Check One)
CONDITION [ Excellent (O Good [ Fair Deteriorated [ Ruins [ -Unexposed
N (Check One) (Check One)
7 Altered Uncitered ] Moved X Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 4 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The 99th Mason-Dixon Line milestone 1s located at the east
birm of the Leitersburg-State Line Road about 2 1/2 miles
north of Leitersburg where it marks the boundary between
Washington County, Maryland and PFranklin County, Pennsyl-
vania.

The marker is a block of cut stone planted firmly in the
ground. Its south face 18 inscribed with the letter M
while the north face displays a P.

The marker is in deteriorated condition with evidence of
damage and extensive weathering at its corners.

33
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(Check One or More as Appropriate)
{3 Pre-Columbion [ 16th Century 18th Century O] 20th Century
[J 15th Century (1 17th Century ] 19th Century ’

SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicadle and Known)

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Abor iginal [ Education g Political - ‘ [ Urbon Plenning
O Prehistoric [ Engineering {3 Religion/Phi- Other (Specity)
O] Historic 3 Industry losophy mundar’ Marker
J Agricuiture [ Invention X Science
O Architecture [0 Landscape O Sevlpture
[ Aet Architecture O Social/Human-
O Commerce O Literature itarion
(O Communications O Military [0 Theater
[ Conservation [ Music {30 Tronsportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This 99th Mason-Dixon milestone is significant as one of the remaining
original boundary markers planted by Charles Mason and Jeremiah Dixon
who began work on the division line between Maryland and Delaware and
Pennsylvania in 1764. The line was completed in 1767. The team crossed
South Mountain and began working on the portion of the line forming

the Northern boundary of Washington County on September 1, 1765. 1In
1768 the actual placing of stones was completed.

The running of the Mason-Dixon Line solved the boundary dispute which
had plagued Maryland, Pennsylvania and Delaware. A temporary line had
been run in 1739 which was approximately 225 perches north of the pre-
sent line.l This line, however, apparently did not ease the dispute.
The contested land between Maryland and Pennsylvania brought frequent
clashes among residents in the area. One of the most famous leaders in
the border fighting was Col. Thomas Cressap who was given the responsi-
bility of holding the Maryland border by Lord Baltimore.

The Penns and Calvert, Lord Baltimore employed Charles Mason and Jeremiaq
Dixon of London to lay the boundary between Pennsylvania and Maryland
and Delaware. These men and their team used sophisticated scientific
methods to determine the course of the boundary. At each mile a stone
was planted with an M and P incised into the appropriate gurfaces. Five
mile intervals were marked with larger, more elaborate crownstones which
carried the Coats of Arms of the proprietors. The stones are said to
have been cut in England. Although enough stones were imported to com-
plete the line, they were not used in the rough mountainous areas becausdq
of transportation difficulties. Instead, high piles of native stones
marked the miles in the mountains. According to T.J.C. Williams' Hiator%
Of Washington County, the unused BEnglish stones were left at Fort Fred-
erick near Clear Spring in Washington County.2

1 Rerbert C. Bell, History Of Leftersburg District.
Leitersburg, Md: the author (1908) p. 46.

2 Thomas J.C. Williams » A History Of Washington County, Maryland.
Hagerstown, Md: Mail Publishing Company, (1906) p. 35.
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Bell, Herbert C., History Of Leitersburg District, Leitersburg, Md:
the author, 1908.

Williams, Thomas J.C., A History Of Washington County. Hagerstowy, Md:
Mail Publishing Co., 1906.
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i.

ORM PREPARED

E AND TITLE:

Paula Stoner Dickey, Consultant

ORGANIZATION DATE

Washington County Historical Sites Survey November 1975

STREET AND NUMBER:

Court House Annex

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Hagerstown Maryland

dstate Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)
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National [7] State [ Local (O
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33 §

SNOIL1ONY¥Y1SNI



T eY0 LUl Fetd

Tmo) A

- o .,e"

"NE

[L63

(SMITHSBURG) |

/ -
429\_N ( T

b ..




at2 g T ey eny fr L 7P RESURTELSTZLT 1702 HEL ) cergess

PR VAR f/,"‘.',i'“ ;5 :_,:- - : YA/
LHALK SN WET LWE [UETNE NE P (DO WA-T- 453

HAGERSTOWN QUADRANGLE = o
' MARYLAND—PENNSYLVANIA “61;9@(/,5/.,07/‘/%& Za
7.5 MINUTE SERIES (TOPOGRAPHIC) w

)N :
, NW/4 HAGERSTOWN 15 QUADRANGLE t »
AUE. 1 = 20007 1953 ot REV. 197/ 77°37°30" w/fj#//v&‘?_// ({j @

! [620000 FEET (MD,) 39045

4'403 . .
(100j 17E D Pf + 228
N

4690 000 FEET
(MD.)

42'30”

AL

1 Ml
*A. 52 MI,







L ERIEIOAL (7747)




— A J
P B, 2T Ly

o T




P 1

/e

g L
L BRIEIWAL (17 7)

Pl Y S 31

7 A

Ai T







PAULA STONER DICKEY
CUNSULTANT, WASHINGTON CO.
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